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is necessary for the proper performance
of FSIS’ functions, including whether
the information will have practical
utility; (b) the accuracy of FSIS’ estimate
of the burden of the proposed collection
of information, including the validity of
the method and assumptions used; (c)
ways to enhance the quality, utility, and
clarity of the information to be
collected; and (d) ways to minimize the
burden of the collection of information,
including through the use of appropriate
automated, electronic, mechanical, or
other technological collection
techniques, or other forms of
information technology. Comments may
be sent to both FSIS, at the addresses
provided above, and the Desk Officer for
Agriculture, Office of Information and
Regulatory Affairs, Office of
Management and Budget (OMB),
Washington, DC 20253.

Additional Public Notification

Public awareness of all segments of
rulemaking and policy development is
important. Consequently, FSIS will
announce this Federal Register
publication on-line through the FSIS
web page located at: https://
www.fsis.usda.gov/federal-register.

FSIS will also announce and provide
a link to this Federal Register
publication through the FSIS
Constituent Update, which is used to
provide information regarding FSIS
policies, procedures, regulations,
Federal Register notices, FSIS public
meetings, and other types of information
that could affect or would be of interest
to our constituents and stakeholders.
The Constituent Update is available on
the FSIS web page. Through the web
page, FSIS can provide information to a
much broader, more diverse audience.
In addition, FSIS offers an email
subscription service which provides
automatic and customized access to
selected food safety news and
information. This service is available at:
https://www.fsis.usda.gov/subscribe.
Options range from recalls to export
information, regulations, directives, and
notices. Customers can add or delete
subscriptions themselves and have the
option to password protect their
accounts.

USDA Non-Discrimination Statement

In accordance with Federal civil
rights law and USDA civil rights
regulations and policies, USDA, its
Mission Areas, agencies, staff offices,
employees, and institutions
participating in or administering USDA
programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, gender
identity (including gender expression),

sexual orientation, disability, age,
marital status, family/parental status,
income derived from a public assistance
program, political beliefs, or reprisal or
retaliation for prior civil rights activity,
in any program or activity conducted or
funded by USDA (not all bases apply to
all programs). Remedies and complaint
filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Program information may be made
available in languages other than
English. Persons with disabilities who
require alternative means of
communication to obtain program
information (e.g., Braille, large print,
audiotape, American Sign Language)
should contact the responsible Mission
Area, agency, or staff office; the USDA
TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600
(voice and TTY); or the Federal Relay
Service at (800) 877—8339.

To file a program discrimination
complaint, a complainant should
complete a Form AD-3027, USDA
Program Discrimination Complaint
Form, which can be obtained online at
https://www.ocio.usda.gov/document/
ad-3027, from any USDA office, by
calling (866) 632—9992, or by writing a
letter addressed to USDA. The letter
must contain the complainant’s name,
address, telephone number, and a
written description of the alleged
discriminatory action in sufficient detail
to inform the Assistant Secretary for
Civil Rights (ASCR) about the nature
and date of an alleged civil rights
violation. The completed AD-3027 form
or letter must be submitted to USDA by:

(1) Mail: U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Office of the Assistant
Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400
Independence Avenue SW, Washington,
DC 20250-9410;

(2) Fax: (833) 256—1665 or (202) 690—
7442; or

(3) Email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Paul Kiecker,

Administrator.

[FR Doc. 2023-07762 Filed 4-12—23; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3410-DM-P

COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS

Notice of Public Meeting of the Texas
Advisory Committee

AGENCY: U.S. Commission on Civil

Rights.

ACTION: Announcement of virtual
business meetings.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given,
pursuant to the provisions of the rules

and regulations of the U.S. Commission
on Civil Rights (Commission) and the
Federal Advisory Committee Act
(FACA) that the Texas Advisory
Committee (Committee) will hold a
series of meetings via ZoomGov on the
following dates and times listed below.
These virtual business meetings are for
the purpose of reviewing and editing
their interim report.
DATES: These meetings will take place
on:
e Thursday, April 27, 2023, from 12
p-m.—1 p.m. CT
e Wednesday, May 10, 2023, from 12
p-m.—1pm. CT

Zoom Link To Join

o Thursday, April 27th: https://
www.zoomgov.com/meeting/register/
v/Itfu-vqTIuHqhl4g6 NNHdH-
cyMH4iA4Sw.

e Wednesday, May 10th: https://
www.zoomgov.com/meeting/register/
v/ItcuiorzMqHtrE2kjXykz
APNKOIOrhsSE.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Brooke Peery, DFO, at bpeery@usccr.gov
or (202) 701-1376.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Committee meetings are available to the
public through the videoconference link
above. Any interested member of the
public may listen to the meeting. An
open comment period will be provided
to allow members of the public to make
a statement as time allows. Per the
Federal Advisory Committee Act, public
minutes of the meeting will include a
list of persons who are present at the
meeting. If joining via phone, callers can
expect to incur regular charges for calls
they initiate over wireless lines,
according to their wireless plan. The
Commission will not refund any
incurred charges. Closed captions will
be provided for individuals who are
deaf or hard of hearing. To request
additional accommodations, please
email bpeery@usccr.gov at least 10
business days prior to the meeting.

Members of the public may also
submit written comments; the
comments must be received in the
Regional Programs Unit within 30 days
following the meeting. Written
comments may be emailed to Brooke
Peery (DFO) at bpeery@usccr.gov.

Records and documents discussed
during the meeting will be available for
public viewing prior to and after the
meeting at https://
www.facadatabase.gov/FACA/
FACAPublicViewCommitteeDetails?id=
a10t0000001gzkoAAA.

Please click on the “Meeting Details”
and “Documents” links. Records
generated from this meeting may also be
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inspected and reproduced at the
Regional Programs Unit, as they become
available, both before and after the
meeting. Persons interested in the work
of this Committee are directed to the
Commission’s website, https://
www.usccr.gov, or may contact the
Regional Programs Unit at the above
email or street address.

Agenda

1. Welcome & Roll Call
II. Approval of Minutes
III. Committee Discussion
IV. Public Comment
V. Adjournment
Dated: April 10, 2023.
David Mussatt,
Supervisory Chief, Regional Programs Unit.
[FR Doc. 2023—07841 Filed 4-12-23; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 6335-01-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Bureau of Industry and Security

URAL Airlines JSC, Utrenniy Lane 1-g,
Yekaterinburg, Russia 620025; Order
Renewing Temporary Denial of Export
Privileges

Pursuant to section 766.24 of the
Export Administration Regulations, 15
CFR parts 730-774 (2021) (“EAR” or
“the Regulations”),! I hereby grant the
request of the Office of Export
Enforcement (“OEE”) to renew the
temporary denial order (“TDO”’) issued
in this matter on October 13, 2022. I
find that renewal of this order is
necessary in the public interest to
prevent an imminent violation of the
Regulations.

I. Procedural History

On October 13, 2022, I signed an
order denying URAL Airlines JSC
(“URAL”) export privileges for a period
of 180 days on the ground that issuance

10n August 13, 2018, the President signed into
law the John S. McCain National Defense
Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, which
includes the Export Control Reform Act of 2018, 50
U.S.C. 4801-4852 (“ECRA”). While section 1766 of
ECRA repeals the provisions of the Export
Administration Act, 50 U.S.C. app. 2401 et seq.
(“EAA”) (except for three sections which are
inapplicable here), section 1768 of ECRA provides,
in pertinent part, that all orders, rules, regulations,
and other forms of administrative action that were
made or issued under the EAA, including as
continued in effect pursuant to the International
Emergency Economic Powers Act, 50 U.S.C. 1701
et seq. (“IEEPA”), and were in effect as of ECRA’s
date of enactment (August 13, 2018), shall continue
in effect according to their terms until modified,
superseded, set aside, or revoked through action
undertaken pursuant to the authority provided
under ECRA. Moreover, section 1761(a)(5) of ECRA
authorizes the issuance of temporary denial orders.
50 U.S.C. 4820(a)(5).

of the order was necessary in the public
interest to prevent an imminent
violation of the Regulations. The order
was issued ex parte pursuant to section
766.24(a) of the Regulations and was
effective upon issuance.?

On March 7, 2023, BIS, through OEE,
submitted a written request for renewal
of the TDO that issued on October 13,
2022. The written request was made
more than 20 days before the TDO’s
scheduled expiration. A copy of the
renewal request was sent to URAL in
accordance with sections 766.5 and
766.24(d) of the Regulations. No
opposition to the renewal of the TDO
has been received.

II. Renewal of the TDO

A. Legal Standard

Pursuant to section 766.24, BIS may
issue an order temporarily denying a
respondent’s export privileges upon a
showing that the order is necessary in
the public interest to prevent an
“imminent violation” of the
Regulations, or any order, license or
authorization issued thereunder. 15 CFR
766.24(b)(1) and 766.24(d). ““A violation
may be ‘imminent’ either in time or
degree of likelihood.” 15 CFR
766.24(b)(3). BIS may show ‘“‘either that
a violation is about to occur, or that the
general circumstances of the matter
under investigation or case under
criminal or administrative charges
demonstrate a likelihood of future
violations.” Id. As to the likelihood of
future violations, BIS may show that the
violation under investigation or charge
“‘is significant, deliberate, covert and/or
likely to occur again, rather than
technical or negligent[.]” Id. A “lack of
information establishing the precise
time a violation may occur does not
preclude a finding that a violation is
imminent, so long as there is sufficient
reason to believe the likelihood of a
violation.” Id.

B. The TDO and BIS’s Request for
Renewal

The U.S. Commerce Department,
through BIS, responded to the Russian
Federation’s (“Russia’s’’) further
invasion of Ukraine by implementing a
sweeping series of stringent export
controls that severely restrict Russia’s
access to technologies and other items
that it needs to sustain its aggressive
military capabilities. These controls
primarily target Russia’s defense,
aerospace, and maritime sectors and are
intended to cut off Russia’s access to
vital technological inputs, atrophy key
sectors of its industrial base, and

2The TDO was published in the Federal Register
on October 19, 2022 (87 FR 63477).

undercut Russia’s strategic ambitions to
exert influence on the world stage.
Effective February 24, 2022, BIS
imposed expansive controls on aviation-
related (e.g., Commerce Control List
Categories 7 and 9) items to Russia,
including a license requirement for the
export, reexport or transfer (in-country)
to Russia of any aircraft or aircraft parts
specified in Export Control
Classification Number (ECCN) 9A991
(section 746.8(a)(1) of the EAR).3 BIS
will review any export or reexport
license applications for such items
under a policy of denial. See section
746.8(b). Effective March 2, 2022, BIS
excluded any aircraft registered in,
owned, or controlled by, or under
charter or lease by Russia or a national
of Russia from being eligible for license
exception Aircraft, Vessels, and
Spacecraft (AVS) (section 740.15 of the
EAR).# Accordingly, any U.S.-origin
aircraft or foreign aircraft that includes
more than 25% controlled U.S.-origin
content, and that is registered in,
owned, or controlled by, or under
charter or lease by Russia or a national
of Russia, is subject to a license
requirement before it can travel to
Russia.

OEE’s request for renewal is based
upon the facts underlying the issuance
of the initial TDO and the evidence
developed over the course of this
investigation, which indicate a blatant
disregard for U.S. export controls, as
well as the TDO. Specifically, the initial
TDO, issued on October 13, 2022, was
based on evidence that URAL engaged
in conduct prohibited by the
Regulations by operating aircraft subject
to the EAR and classified under ECCN
9A991 on flights into Russia after March
2, 2022 from destinations, including
Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan; Dushanbe,
Tajikistan; Khudzhand, Tajikistan; and
Tamchy, Kyrgyzstan, without the
required BIS authorization.? Further
evidence submitted by BIS indicated
that URAL was continuing to operate
aircraft subject to the EAR domestically

387 FR 12226 (Mar. 3, 2022). Additionally, BIS
published a final rule effective April 8, 2022, which
imposed licensing requirements on items controlled
on the Commerce Control List (“CCL”) under
Categories 0-2 that are destined for Russia or
Belarus. Accordingly, now all CCL items require
export, reexport, and transfer (in-country) licenses
if destined for or within Russia or Belarus. 87 FR
22130 (Apr. 14, 2022).

487 FR 13048 (Mar. 8, 2022).

5Publicly available flight tracking information
shows multiple flights into Russia, including the
following: on September 10, 2022, SN 5055 flew
from Dushanbe, Tajikistan to Irkutsk, Russia, and
on September 6, 2022, SN 5055 flew from
Khudzhand, Tajikistan to Sochi, Russia. In
addition, on October 6, 2022, serial number (SN)
5055 flew from Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan to Samara,
Russia.
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